IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: SC03-710
Lower Tribunal No.: 94-00723-CFAWS

BOBBY RALEIGH,

Appellant.

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

KENNETH M. MALNIK
MALNIK & SALKIN, P.A.
Florida Bar No.: 351415
1776 N. Pine Island Road
Suite 216
Plantation, FL 33322

(954) 423-4469; FAX (954) 423-

4479

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding involves the appeal of the Circuit

Court's summary of denial of Mr. Raleigh's Motion for

Postconviction Relief. The motion was brought pursuant to Fla.

R. Crim. P. 3.850.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Defense relies on the following statement of the facts of this case, which is taken from the Florida Supreme Court's opinion on direct appeal:

In the early morning hours of June 5, 1994, while at the Club Europe in DeLand, Domingo Figueroa told Raleigh that someone had slapped his mother. Raleigh and Figueroa confronted Douglas Cox and his brother and while they were talking in the parking lot, Raleigh's mother ran out of the bar screaming at Cox. Raleigh took his mother to the car and returned to confront Cox.

After apologizing for his mother's actions and shaking hands with Cox, Raleigh obtained guns from his home. Raleigh and Figueroa then drove to Cox's trailer.

Raleigh went to the door with a gun in his hand and was told by Ronald Baker that Cox Raleigh and Figueroa left, was asleep. drove down a nearby dirt road, park, and later returned to Cox's trailer carrying Raleigh walked to the end of the trailer and shot Cox in the head three times at close range. Figueroa and Raleigh shot Tim Eberlin, Cox's roommate, until their guns jammed. Raleigh then beat Eberlin in the head with the barrel of the gun until he Raleigh and Figueroa stopped screaming. drove to Raleigh's home where they burned the clothes they wore during the murders, dumped the bullets into a neighbor's yard, later hid the guns in and a secret compartment in Raleigh's Subaru. The police went to Raleigh's house that night and he agreed to talk to them. Raleigh initially denied his involvement in the murders, but after being told that Figueroa implicated him, he taped a second statement admitting that he killed Cox and Eberlin.

On June 6, 1995, Raleigh pled guilty to two counts of first degree murder and the penalty

phase was conducted from August 8 to August 15, 1995. A jury unanimously recommended the death penalty on each count. On February 16, 1996, the trial court sentenced Raleigh to death, finding that the aggravating circumstances, (FN1) outweighed the one statutory mitigating circumstance, (FN2) and several nonstatutory mitigating circumstances. (FN3)

(FN1.) Aggravating circumstances: (1) defendant was convicted of a prior violent felony (Cox and Eberlin); (2) defendant committed

the murder while engaged in a burglary (Cox and Eberlin); (3) defendant committed the murder in a cold, calculated, and premeditated manner (Cox); (4) defendant committed the murder to avoid arrest or effect escape (Eberlin); (5) the murder was especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel (Eberlin).

(FN2.) Statutory mitigating circumstance: Raleigh was nineteen at the time of the crime (§ 921.141(6)(g), Fla. Stat. (1995)).

(FN3.) Nonstatutory mitigating factors: defendant (1) intoxicated; (2) is remorseful; (3) pled guilty; (4) offered to testify against codefendant Figueroa; (5) could probably adjust well to prison life; (6) is a good son and friend to his mother; (7) is a good brother; (8) is a good father figure to exgirlfriend's daughter; (9) born into dysfunctional family; did not know who fathered him; (11) attempted suicide; (12) has low self-esteem; (13) suffers from an adjustment disorder and is anti-social; (14)uses poor judgment and engaged in impulsive behavior; (15) is a follower.

Raleigh v. State, 705 So. 2d 1324, 1326-27 (Fla. 1997). On appeal, Raleigh raised the following issues, as framed by the Florida Supreme Court:

Whether the trial court erred by (1) failing to instruct the jury on the "no significant history of criminal activity": statutory

mitigator; (2) instructing the jury on the "pecuniary gain" aggravator: (3) failing to give the requested instruction on ":cold, calculated, and premeditated: (CCP) aggravator; (4) dismissing a jury defense objection, where there was showing that the juror could not be fair; (5) finding the "during the course of a burglary" aggravator; (6) finding the "avoid arrest" aggravator; (7) finding the CCP aggravator for Cox's murder; (8) finding the atrocious, cruel" "heinous, or (HAC) aggravator for Eberlin's murder; (9) rejecting the "under substantial domination another" statutory mitigator; (10) rejecting the "no significant history of criminal activity" statutory mitigator: (11) giving only "some weight" to the "remorseful and cooperative with authorities" nonstatutory mitigator; (12) rejecting Figueroa's life sentences as a nonstatutory mitigator; (13) giving "little weight" to Raleigh's voluntary intoxication; and (14) sentencing Raleigh to death, because death is disproportionate.

Raleigh v. State, 705 So. 2d at 1327 n. 4.

On March 23, 1998, the Supreme Court issued its Mandate, affirming Defendant's conviction and sentence. See Raleigh v. State, 705 So. 2d 1324 (Fla. 1998). On November 20, 1998, attorney of record, Christopher DeBrock, of Capital Collateral Region Counsel-Middle, filed a Motion to Vacate Judgment of Conviction and Sentence with Special Request to Amend. On January 12, 1999, the Court ordered the State to respond to the motion. In their response, filed March 26, 1999, the State argued that the motion was legally insufficient. On January 19,

2001, new counsel, Kenneth Malnik, filed an Amended Motion to Vacate Plea, Judgment of Conviction and Sentence. On February 26, 2001, the State filed its Response to Defendant's amended motion, and on April 4, 2001, Defendant filed his Reply to the State's Response. On August 2, 2001, a Huff hearing was held. Huff v. State, 622 So. 2d 982 (Fla. 1993). At the conclusion of the Huff hearing, and based on arguments presented therein, the Court granted Defendant an evidentiary hearing on claims (1),(3),(4),(6),(9), and (11). Subsequently, on August 9, 2001, the Court entered an Order denying Defendant any relief on claims (5),(7),(8),(10),(12),(13), and (14), but added claim (2) to the list of claims to be heard at the evidentiary hearing. The evidentiary hearing was held February 24 - 26, 2003 at which time the Court heard testimony from Dr. Ernest Bordini, Ms. Lisa Wiley, Attorney Michael Teal, Attorney Elizabeth Blackburn, Attorney James Alexander, and Attorney James Clayton. Defendant did not testify.

An Order denying claims (1),(2),(3),(4),(6),(9), and (11) was entered on March 24, 2003. A Notice of Appeal was filed on April 14, 2003.

ARGUMENT I

LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING RALEIGH'S CLAIMTHAT THE MENTAL HEALTH DID NOT RENDER ADEQUATE MENTAL ASSISTANCE AS REQUIRED IN AKE v. OKLAHOMA

Mr. Raleigh argued in the Lower Court that he was denied his rights under the federal constitution to a professional, competent, and appropriate mental health evaluation for use in the aid of his defense. Defense counsel failed to obtain a professional, competent, and appropriate mental health evaluation. Counsel further failed to provide the background material necessary for an adequate and appropriate evaluation. Ake v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68 (1985); Morgan v. State, 639 So. 2d 6 (Fla. 1994) With mental health at issue, counsel has a duty to conduct a thorough investigation into his client's mental health background, see O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984), and to assure that the client is not denied a professional and professionally conducted mental evaluation. Cowley v. Stricklin, 929 F.2d 640 (11th Cir. 1991); Mason v. State, 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986); Mouldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984). Mr. Raleigh's argument is that his mental condition was not adequately developed during sentencing in establishing (a) statutory

mitigation factors; (b) statutory aggravating factors and (c) myriad non-statutory mitigating factors. Dr. Ernest J. Bordini, a clinical forensic neuropsychologist, reviewed records, examined Mr. Raleigh, and testified at the subsequent evidentiary hearing and found numerous areas of omission in the prior psychological/neuropsychological evaluation performed by Dr. James Upson, Ph.D.

The Lower Court's rulings speak to two areas. First, the Court proffers that this claim is procedurally barred. However, the Court rules on the merits. Second, the Court finds that Dr. Bordini merely repackages Dr. Upson's findings and although Dr. Bordini's evaluation may be packaged better, it does not make Dr. Upson's evaluation inadequate. On both rulings, the Lower Court erred.

Dr. Bordini was qualified as an expert in Neuropsychology and as a Forensic Psychologist. As explained in the Lower Court's findings at R. 592-593, Dr. Bordini testified that he met with Mr. Raleigh three times to conduct his testing. He interviewed Mr. Raleigh's mother, Janice Figueroa and reviewed a history which included Dr. Upson's records, his report, depositions, and testimony; Defendant's deposition, testimony, and statements; statements from Ronald Baker and Andy Bennett (girlfriend) plus their testimony; Janice Figueroa's deposition,

testimony, and statements (spoke to her as well); Domingo Figueroa's statement; deposition of Dr. Reeves, the Medical Examiner,; a letter sent to Donna Stewart; medical records from West Volusia Memorial Hospital; and Joseph Miller's court testimony.

Dr. Bordini testified that Mr. Raleigh did not know who his natural father was, yet he suspected that his father was his maternal uncle; his mom was fifteen (15) years old when she gave birth to Defendant; he witnessed physical abuse and was sexually abused himself, as early as age four; he felt alienated from his stepfather; he witnessed his stepfather abuse his mom; he used drugs and alcohol, and huffed freon; attempted suicide; had bisexual feelings; and dealt drugs. The Lower Court continued at R. 593 that according to Dr. Bordini, Defendant's mom, Janice Figueroa, relayed that there was a family psychiatric history of anxiety disorder, depression, substance abuse, and incestuous relationships; that two of her sisters have panic attacks; she and another sister have been diagnosed with depression; other members suffer from alcoholism and depression; an committed suicide; and one brother is on disability for paranoid schizophrenia. Mrs. Figueroa also described Defendant as naive, seen as a family joke, and easily influenced or manipulated.

Dr. Bordini administered the MMPI test to Defendant which

revealed elevations across several scales, indicating a broad range of features and multiple diagnosis. The scales showed evaluation in terms of symptoms relating to post-traumatic stress disorder; elevation on scale of depression; high elevation on the border line features scale; high score on the schizophrenia scale; slight elevation, not in the clinical range, on the antisocial personalty feature; and marked elevation on the suicide scale. He also administered a second test, Trauma Symptom Inventory, and Defendant obtained elevated scores on all the scales; including depression and anxious moods, disturbances and sense of identity, sense of control, and impaired feelings of self-reference.

Dr. Bordini also conducted some neuropsychological testing. Dr. Bordini first noted some frontal lobe difficulties, but he did not elaborate. Using DSM IV, Dr. Bordini made a diagnosis of Defendant. As to Axis I, he noted cognitive disorder not otherwise specified, which he described as neuropsychological dysfunction directly related to developmental factors, and frequent freon inhalation, a communication disorder not otherwise specified, depression, posttraumatic stress disorder; and an anxiety disorder not otherwise specified. As to Axis II, he noted borderline personality disorder; dependent personality disorder (subserves his needs to others); and features of

antisocial personalt8y disorder. As to Axis III, Dr. Bordini noted that Defendant had chronic hip and hand pain.

In reference to statutory mitigators, Dr. Bordini indicated under that Defendant was extreme mental or emotional disturbance, extreme duress or substantial domination of another, his capacity to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to conform his conduct to the requirements of law was substantially impaired (Defendant did understand he was killing someone, did appreciate the criminality of his conduct, but had less time to reflect during the second killing), and Defendant was only nineteen (19) years old at the time of the murders.

Dr. Bordini also testified that he did not find Defendant to be mentally retarded; Defendant had a 98 IQ; Defendant admired Domingo, and may have even had some feelings for him; Defendant's memory was impaired from alcohol; Defendant relies upon visual information more than language, i.e. gives visual signals more weight; and Defendant was drinking heavily on the night of the murders (approx. 3-4 drinks per hour).

The Lower Court's Order indicates Dr. Bordini testified as to Dr. Upson's failures. The Lower Court characterized these failure at R.. 593:

(1) Dr. Upson was unaware of critical family history and witness statements, (2) failed to adequately understand Defendant's behavior before the murders; (3) did not

have enough information about domination to adequately testify to it; (4) erred by failing to work with a diagnosis; (5) administered and scored the MMPI test wrong (Dr. Bordini could not replicate the results); (6) failed to administer a formal memory test; and (7) he failed to fully explore the effects of alcohol on Defendant's judgment and motor function on the night of the murders.

The Lower Court summarily dismisses these failures and instead suggests that Dr. Bordini's evaluation is just better packaged.

Dr. Bordini's explanation of Dr. Upson's deficiencies leads to the conclusion that Dr. Upson's evaluation was inadequate.

DEFICIENT CLINICAL INTERVIEW

- Q And what is that opinion with respect to Dr. Upson's conduct of the clinical interview of Mr. Raleigh?
- I think there were some critical areas Α in the history that Dr. Upson was not aware of, and some critical areas in of witness terms statements about Bobby's state of mind and actions and behaviors that he was not aware of. don't think he - I think his own testimony indicated that he felt he didn't have enough information about domination to testify adequately with respect to that aspect of mitigating circumstances.

There was some failures in terms of follow-up questioning in terms of history of depression, family

psychiatric history. There was a failure to adequately understand Mr. Raleigh's behavior and psychiatric state in the days prior to the crime.

- Q And what's the significance, in your opinion, assuming that Dr. Upson didn't do that, what's the deficiency in not exploring behavior in the days leading up to the incident?
- Well, one of the things that's a little Α bit hard to explain is that Dr. Upson initially indicates that he was not working with a diagnosis. That's not according to Florida standards in terms of any patient that we see, it's almost required that he have a diagnostic formulation. To formulate diagnostic formulation, the family psychiatric history would cue him as to what types of things to inquire further about. There's some family history of psychosis, there's question of, you know, anxiety disorder, and so forth.

There's a question of how severely depressed he is and his family's predisposition to depression that is relevant.

So, certainly, one of the things when we're trying to understand defendant's mental state at the time of the crime, asking about the days prior to or afterwards can be very revealing. consistencies You look for inconsistencies. Oftentimes, defendant can be motivated to tell you a different story on the day of the crime for self-serving purposes. They're usually less sophisticated as to sort of knowing how to respond about the days prior to, and so forth. what you're looking for his patterns of behavior and the more consistent the

patterns are, you know, as an evaluator, the more weight or the more competent you could be in your conclusions. So understanding those facts is very critical to formulating the opinion.

(PCT 63-65)

DEFICIENCY IN TESTING

- Q Do you have an opinion as to whether there were any deficiencies in Dr. Upson's neuropsych examination and findings of Mr. Raleigh?
- A Yes.
- Q Can you tell the Court what they are?
- Α Obviously, we discussed the problem with the MMPI in terms of it seems to not be scored correctly, which is one of the tests that we primarily rely on in terms of confirming our impressions about the depression and anxiety and so forth. Clearly, there is some concerns about the potential of Bobby having memory deficits because of his history. I can't understand, though, Dr. Upson did do a number of neuropsychological tests, he didn't do any formal memory tests, which I think is a significant deficiency and doesn't allow him to speak to whether Bobby has an amnestic disorder or not.
- Q And when a say amnestic disorder, what does that mean?
- A It's a word for memory problems.
- Q And in this case did you make diagnoses under DSM IV.
- A I did.

DEFICIENCY IN REVIEWING COLLATERAL DATA

- Q Did you find any deficiencies with respect to whether Dr. Upson gathered enough material to even formulate an opinion?
- A He apparently had asked for some material that he didn't receive.
- Q Okay, you don't know for a fact whether he received it or not, that's what he related?
- Α That's what he testified to, correct. And there clearly was material that had to do with witness statements. know, one dramatic example the witness statement of his waving the gun to his Other statements about Bobby slurring his speech or acting like he's while he's outside wired οf trailer, clearly, you know, speak to his state of mind and what was going on at the time. I can't see any reason not to, you know - it's unfathomable not to review those records. (PCT 65)

These failures and omissions deprived Mr. Raleigh of substantial evidence relevant to the outcome of Mr. Raleigh's penalty phase. Most disturbing is the lack of discussion of Dr. Upson's testimony by the trial court in its Sentencing Order. Dr. Upson is barely mentioned. Dr. Upson's minimal impact on the Court's decisions is reflected in its findings without mention of Dr. Upson; although it is his testimony which the

Court uses to make these findings:

"The Court finds three aggravating factors have been established beyond a reasonable doubt. One statutory mitigating factor, the age of the Defendant, has been reasonably established. Several non-statutory factors were also established.

The Statutory mitigator of the Defendant's age is not entitled to much weight. The non-statutory mitigators of the Defendant's guilty plea, offer to testify, and remorse are entitled to some weight and consideration. The remaining non-statutory mitigators are entitled to little weight." (R. 731)

The Lower Court in its evidentiary hearing order cites a number of cases , Asay v. State, 769, So. 2d 974, 986 (Fla. 2000); Jones v. State, 732 So. 2d 313, 320 (Fla. 1999); Rutherford v. State, 727 So. 2d 216, 224 (Fla. 1999); Rose v. State, 617 So. 2d 291, 293 (Fla. 1993); Sireci v. State, 502 So. 2d 1221; Jones v. State, 2003 WL 297074 at page 6 (Fla. February 13, 2003) to justify as adequate the work of trial counsel and the psychologist. (PCR 594) These cases will first be examined with respect to the quality of work of trial counsel and the mental health experts. Second, these cases will be examined with respect to the quality of the postconviction mental health mitigation.

This Court, in Asay v. State, 769 So. 2d 974 (Fla. 2000) ruled in citing as one of the reasons that penalty phase counsel

reasonably relied upon Dr. Vallely's report:

"Dr. Sultan, a clinical psychologist who testified for Asay at the evidentiary hearing, testified that the results of the psychological tests she administered were not inconsistent with the results garnered by Dr. Vallely and a competent psychologist could have reached Dr. Vallely's diagnosis." *Id.* at 986.

In the instant case, Dr. Bordini testified at great length that he could not replicate Dr. Upson's test results leading him to the conclusion that Dr. Upson's test results were invalid. (PCT 80,81) In addition, Dr. Bordini criticized Dr. Upson' work, because Dr. Upson failed to make a diagnosis which is fundamental to a psychological evaluation. (PCT 64)

The Court, in its Order cites Rose v. State, 617 So. 2d 291, 293 (Fla. 1993). A close reading of Rose reveals a major distinction between this case and Rose.

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