I N THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORI DA

BOBBY RALEI GH,
Appel | ant,

V.

STATE OF FLORI DA,

Appel | ee.

CASE NO. SC03-710

ON APPEAL FROM THE SEVENTH JUDI Cl AL Cl RCUI T
IN AND FOR VOLUSI A COUNTY, FLORI DA

ANSWER BRI EF OF APPELLEE

CHARLES J. CRI ST, JR
ATTORNEY GENERAL

KENNETH S. NUNNELLEY

SENI OR ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fl a. Bar #998818

444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th FL

Dayt ona Beach, FL 32118

(386) 238-4990

Fax # (386) 226-0457

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

He agreed that Raleigh was "pervasively inpulsive" and
showed a reckless disregard for hinself as well as others.
(EH126) .2 Al though he believed that Raleigh was intoxicated at
the time of the nurders, he was still able to use a sem -
automati c weapon in order to shoot one of his victins three
times in the head. In addition, Raleigh' s second victimwas al so
shot and subsequently beaten to death with a pistol. (EH134,

138). Ral eigh's nother, Janice Figueroa told Dr. Bordini that

LAneri can Psychiatric Associ ati on: Di agnosti c and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fourth Edition, Text

Revi si on. Washi ngton, DC, Anerican Psychiatric Association,
2000.

°These are hallmarks of Antisocial Personality Disorder.
DSM | V- TR at 701-10.
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she believed her son had been physically and sexual |y abused at
"the age of four or five." (EH139). Raleigh had not reported
this abuse to Dr. Upson and had he been asked, he "m ght have
said, no." (EH140). Further, if Janice Figueroa did not report
any facts of the case to Dr. Upson, Bordini said, " ... that
woul d inpair Dr. Upson's understanding of the facts that are
potentially there ..." (EH142). Bordini reiterated that Ral eigh
used Freon as an inhalant for two to three nonths - - even
t hough he eventually stopped, it was heavy use for two to three
nont hs. (EH145-46). Bordini testified that Raleigh is not
mentally retarded, but rather is of average intelligence with a
full scale 1Q of 98 according to Dr. Upson's tests. Bordini did
not conduct any intelligence testing on Raleigh. (EH147).
Al t hough he requested an interview with the co-defendant,
Dom ngo Fi gueroa, his request was deni ed, and Bordi ni only spoke
with Ral eigh and his nother in connection with his work on this
case. (EH148). Ral eigh knew it was wong when he killed his two
victinms. (EH161). Sonme of Raleigh's conduct "was purposeful and
sone conduct was pretty disorganized® on the night of the
murders, including the disposal of evidence following the
killings. (EHL64, 166).

Lisa Wley, a counselor with the Departnment of Corrections,

provides nental health services to inmates on death row

13



(EH174). She stated that Raleigh currently took Wellbutrin, a
medi cation used to treat depression. (EH176).

M chael Teal, a practicing attorney for twenty-five years,
was one of Raleigh's trial attorneys. (EH178, 233). He was aware
from the beginning that the State would be seeking the death
penalty. He was assisted by his partner, James Clayton, in
preparing the defense case. (EH180). He had not previously
handl ed a penalty phase in a capital case. (EH181). After the
guilty pleas was entered, Teal's firm retained Dr. Upson, a
psychol ogist, to determne if any statutory nmental health
mtigators applied. (EH182-83). Dr. Upson had approximately two
nmonths to prepare for the penalty phase and was provided with
everyt hi ng he requested, including any avail abl e court or police
records. (EH183, 185). Dr. Upson's report did not specify if
Ral eigh was under the substantial donmi nation of another.
(EH191). WM. Teal aware of the statutory aggravators and
mtigators, and assisted the psychologist he hired in these
areas. (EH199). He did not specifically ask Dr. Upson if Ral eigh
met the «criteria for antisocial personality disorder as
specified inthe DSMRIV. (see note 1). Raleigh did not indicate
t hat he had been a victi mof sexual abuse. M. Teal stated, "

| had tried to discuss with him ... some things ... he

wi shed not to comment on." (EH206). He and his partner, Janes
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Cl ayton, discussed Raleigh's decision to plead guilty to two
counts of nurder on several occasions. (EH210). After entering
a change of plea, it was the defense's intention to waive the
jury in the sentencing phase, even though "Judge Foxman had
presi ded over death penalty cases before" and he had i nposed the
deat h penalty in several other cases. (EH210, 211). In addition,
" a lot of the evidence was extrenely graphic ... M.
Ral ei gh had been indicted for another homcide ... we just
t hought we could elinmnate sone of the ... hysteria and the
enotions ... if we could confine it to a judge nmaking the
ultimte decision." (EH212).° The defense was informed by the
trial court that it "would provide two nonstatutory mtigators
if a plea were entered." (EH214). He did not tell Raleigh that
the trial judge would not give himthe death penalty if he was
the ultimte sentencer, but thought that Raleigh had a better
chance with the judge. (EH216). In addition, he argued to have
t he fel ony nmurder aggravator dropped as the two burglary counts
were dropped. (EH217). He said, " ... we tried to use sone
strategy to save him" (EH219). U timtely, he recomended t hat
it would be in Raleigh's best interest to plead guilty. (EH222).

Subsequent to Raleigh's death sentence, Teal and Cl ayton

SThe indictnent for the nurder of Lauralee Spears was
ultimately di sm ssed. (EH242, 347).
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visited himin prison, rem nding himthat the trial judge had
never made a specific promse that there would be no death
penalty, or that there would be an override to a |ife sentence
(EH227-28). Prior to the penalty phase, the defense noved to
sever this case fromthat of the co-defendant, Dom ngo Fi gueroa,
believing that Figueroa was " ... basically the ringleader and
t hat he had dom nated and controll ed Bobby." (EH229). M. Teal
was confident that he had relayed to Raleigh, both before and
after he entered his guilty plea, that co-defendant Figueroa
woul d testify against him (EH232).

On cross-exam nation, Teal said he worked with other nental
health professionals "on a |imted basis.” (EH234). An
addi ti onal consideration Ral eigh gave to pleading guilty was the
desire to protect his nother fromtestifying about statenents he
had made to her regarding his involvenent. (EH234). He believed
that Ral eigh was the follower with regard to Dom ngo Fi gueroa
and "he wanted to pl ease Dom ngo." (EH236). Although Ral eigh did
not divul ge any information regardi ng sexual abuse as a child,
Teal would have alerted Dr. Upson had he (Raleigh) disclosed
that type of information. (EH237). It was Raleigh's contention
that he did not know what he was doing at the victins' trailer
ot her than Dom ngo drove hi mout there, and "that was sonething

we were trying to use in our favor." (EH240). Teal said there
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were "no side deals, no understandi ngs with anybody" regarding
Ral ei gh' s decision to plead guilty. The defense thought they had
a better chance with a judge rather than a jury.(EH241). In
addi tion, the defense was aware that the State intended to use
Dom ngo Figueroa as a witness against Raleigh at the qguilt
phase. (EH244).

On re-direct, Teal stated that Raleigh's plea was nade
freely and voluntarily. Despite the chance that Ral ei gh's not her
nm ght have had to testify regarding statenents Ral eigh made to
her, "1 felt he was still making an infornmed decision even with
that in mind." (EH246, 247).

El i zabet h Bl ackburn, the prosecutor in this case, sought the
death penalty for Raleigh and co-defendant Doni ngo Figueroa,
from the beginning. (EH265, 267). It was unacceptable to the
State to accept a guilt plea fromRal eigh in exchange for alife
sentence without the possibility of parole. In addition, the
State sought to have Ral eigh's nother, Janice Figueroa, answer
gquestions with regard to her know edge of the case.(EH268). Had
she not answered the questions, the State would have sought
sanctions against her - - this fact was made known to the

def ense. (EH269).4 Regarding the guilty pleas, the burglary

“The law at that time woul d have subjected Ms. Figueroa to
ajail termof up to six nonths for a contenpt charge. (EH269).
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charges were to be dropped as part of the plea deal. (EH274). It
was al so the State's position that there should be an advisory
jury. (EH276).

It was the State's theory that Raleigh killed both of the

victims in order to elimnate potential drug conpetition.
(EH277) .
Al t hough there was evidence that Ral eigh had been drinking on
t he ni ght of the nurders, Blackburn did not concede that Ral ei gh
was i ntoxicated at the time he murdered the two victinms. (EH278-
79) .

On cross-exam nati on, Bl ackburn testified that there was no
evidence in the State's possession that would have excul pated
Ral eigh or incrim nated Figueroa, that was not previously
provided to the defense - - in her words, "Everything was
di sclosed."” (EH302). In addition, the same evidence was relied
on in both Raleigh's and Figueroa's trials. (EH303).

Janmes Al exander, now in private practice, was the forner
el ected State Attorney for the Seventh Circuit during the
pendency of Raleigh's trial. (EH304-05). He did not recall being
involved in any plea negotiations with Raleigh's counsel but
assi sted Eli zabeth Bl ackburn wi t h co-def endant Figueroa's trial.
(EH305, 306). A plea deal was not going to be considered for

Figueroa until after the conpletion of Raleigh's trial.
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Al exander testified, "I was afraid he'd double-cross us and
exonerate Raleigh ... | didn't trust ... any defendant in that
case." (EH306). During Figueroa' s trial, Al exander told the jury
that Figueroa nade a statenent to his uncle that "I killed one
and Bobby killed one." (EH317).°

On cross-exam nation, Al exander stated that these killings
occurred because " ... Raleigh had had the fight earlier in a
bar and because Ral eigh was upset and ticked off about what
happened in that fight and he wanted revenge. And it was because
of Ral eigh that he went and got a gun, and it was because of
Ral ei gh they went to the residence where the ... two victinms
lived. It was all to avenge ... Raleigh's honor for what
happened in this barroomfight earlier that night. So everything
was done at the behest of Raleigh."” (EH318-19). There was
physi cal evidence in this case as well as the conflicting
statenents of Ral ei gh and Fi gueroa. (EH319). As Al exander said,
"Each defendant was pointing the finger at the other one."
( EH320) .

Janmes Cl ayton, was Ral eigh's other trial attorney. (EH331).6

It was the defense's contention that Bobby Ral eigh was "under

SDougl as Cox and Ti nothy Eberlin were the victinms. (EH309).

6James Clayton is currently a Circuit Court Judge for the
Seventh Circuit and formerly M chael Teal's partner. (EH331,
332).
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t he dom native control of M. Figueroa." (EH334). He bargained
with the State to have the burglary charges "nol-prossed”
because he ... did not want the jury to consider burglary as an
addi ti onal aggravator. (EH336). There was, however, no agreenment
with the State that it would not pursue a felony nmurder theory.
(EH337). M chael Teal, handled the hiring of the mental health
expert, Dr. Upson. (EH337). They did not pressure Raleigh to
enter a plea, but Raleigh's love for his nother was a main
factor in his decision to enter a plea. (EH340). Because of
Ral ei gh's confession to his nother regarding his crinmes, she was
going to be called by the State as a witness. (EH341). Ral eigh
was very renorseful for what he had done, and the defense hoped
that the jury would see this in the penalty phase. (EH343). He
told Raleigh that it was best to waive the jury in the penalty
phase as "... | would much rather roll the dice with the Judge
than with a 12 man jury. (EH345). Although the Judge prom sed
nonstatutory aggravators, he " ... never, ever pronised an end
result.” (EH347).

On cross-exam nation, Clayton said he had handl ed a capital
case prior to Raleigh's. (EH350). At the tinme the defense
entered the guilty plea, he did not believe that the nenta
health issues were as significant as they are now (EH352).

Ral eigh had indicated to him that he was not gqguilty of
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premedi tated nurder. (EH354). He did not recall if he argued to
the jury in the penalty phase that Raleigh was not guilty of
fel ony nurder. (EH355). Clayton relayed to his client that Ms.
Fi gueroa (Ral eigh's nother)could potentially serve jail tine if
she did not testify should she be called as a witness. (EH358).
He was aware of Judge Foxman's sentencing tendencies and knew
that he had inposed the death penalty in other cases. In
addi tion, Clayton was not aware of any other defense attorney in
a capital case that had waived a jury in |lieu of having Judge
Foxman as the sentencer. (EH360). It was his belief, in this
case, that it would have been a case "appropriate in front of a
judge, not just Judge Foxman, any judge" in lieu of a jury.
( EH361) .

On re-direct, Clayton agreed that Raleigh had "no good
options" prior to entering his guilty plea. (EH366). Based on
hi s and Teal 's advice, Raleigh entered his guilty plea. (EH368).

The Circuit Court entered its order denying the Anended
Motion to Vacate on March 24, 2003. Raleigh filed a tinely
Noti ce of Appeal on April 11, 2003.

SUMVARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The “i nadequat e nental status” claimis procedurally barred,
and, alternatively, nmeritless, as the collateral proceeding

trial court found. This claim could have been, but was not,
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rai sed on direct appeal, and the failure to tinmely raise the
claimis a procedural bar under settled Florida |law. Moreover,
Ral ei gh has not denonstrated that he suffered a denial of due
process.

The coll ateral proceeding trial court properly found that
trial counsel were not ineffective in their preparation of the
penalty phase nental state expert. Raleigh did not carry his
burden under Strickland v. Washington because he established
nei ther deficient performance on the part of counsel, nor
prejudice resulting therefrom

The coll ateral proceeding trial court correctly found that
what Ral ei gh characterized as a “G glio” violation was no nore
t han inconsistent argunent on the part of prosecution.

The col |l ateral proceeding trial court properly found that
trial counsel were not ineffective in their strategic decisions
regardi ng t he tape-recorded st atenent of Ral ei gh’s co-def endant.

Ral ei gh’ s argunment concerning the reconmendati on to pl ead
guilty confuses the retroactivity determ nations that are made
by the State and Federal Courts. This Court makes the
determ nation as to whether or not its own decisions are
retroactive -- that determnation is not the province of the
federal courts. To the extent that Ral eigh argues that counsel

shoul d have foreseen the result in Delgado, the law is well-
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settled that counsel cannot be ineffective for “failing” to
foresee future devel opnents in the | aw
ARGUMENT
. THE COLLATERAL PROCEEDI NG TRI AL COURT
PROPERLY DECIDED THE | NADEQUATE MENTAL
STATUS EVALUATI ON CLAIM ON THE ALTERNATI VE
GROUNDS OF PROCEDURAL BAR AND LACK OF MERIT.
On pages 5-31 of his brief, Raleigh asserts that he “was

denied his rights wunder the federal constitution to a

pr of essi onal , conpet ent, and appropriate nmental heal t h
evaluation for use in the aid of his defense.” This claim
whi ch was raised as claimlIll in Raleigh’s Rule 3.851 notion, is

not only procedurally barred, but also neritless, as the trial
court found. To the extent that this claim presents a |egal
guestion, such issues are reviewed de novo. Stephens v. State,
748 So. 2d 1028 (Fla. 1999) (ineffective assistance of counsel
clainms are reviewed de novo); Sins v. State, 754 So. 2d 657, 670
(Flla. 2000). However, the findings of fact underlying the | egal
conclusions of the trial court are subject only to clear error
revi ew. Cade v. Haley, 222 F.3d 1298, 1302 (11th Cir. 2000);
Byrd v. Hasty, 142 F.3d 1395, 1396 (11th Cir. 1998). The
specific claim contained in Raleigh’s brief is, for all
practical purposes, a claim of “ineffective assistance of

psychol ogi st” which bears nore than a passing resenbl ance to a
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claim of ineffective assistance of counsel under Strickland v.
Washi ngton, 488 U.S. 668 (1984).7

Ral ei gh’s constitutional claimis

procedurally barred because it

could have been, but was not,

rai sed on direct appeal.

The claimcontained in Raleigh’s brief is explicitly based
on Ake v. Okl ahoma, 470 U.S. 68 (1985). Ake is based solely on
t he due process conponent of the Ei ghth Amendnent, and expressly
refused to consider the applicability of the Sixth Amendment to
the “ineffective assistance of nental state expert” claim Ake,
470 U.S. at 87 n. 13. This Court, in deciding Ake clainms, has
decided that a <claim of inadequate nmental state expert
assistance is a direct appeal clai mwhich cannot be presented as
an ineffective assistance of counsel claim to avoid the
precl usive effect of the procedural bar. See, More v. State,
820 So. 2d 199, 202, n. 3 & 4 (Fla. 2002) (claimof inadequate
mental state expert based on Ake is procedurally barred if not
rai sed on direct appeal). This claimis procedurally barred
under settled Florida law, and the Circuit Court’s alternative

denial of relief on that basis is an adequate and i ndependent

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